
CITY OF FRANKLIN 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING* 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

               
 

A.   Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

B.  Approval of Minutes 
 

 1. Approval of regular meeting of August 6, 2015  
 

2. Approval of regular meeting of August 20, 2015. 
 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters (action may be taken on all matters following  
                                                                      the respective Public Hearing thereon) 
 

1. MILWAUKEE COUNTY/HUNGER TASK FORCE FARM PROPERTY. 
Rezoning and Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment applications by Milwaukee County 
Parks Department and Hunger Task Force, to rezone a portion of the County Farm 
property from its current A-1 Agricultural District to a new Planned Development 
District (subject property encompasses the existing 50.6 acre parcel located at the 
northeast corner of West Ryan Road and South 68th Street which includes all of the 

 existing farm buildings located immediately east of the House of Correction), to 
incorporate all existing uses and to provide for the future development of a visitor center 
and associated pavilion and one or more storage buildings, and to change the future land 
use designation from Commercial Use to Mixed Use, for property zoned A-1 Agricultural 
District, located at 9000 South 68th Street; Tax Key No. 883-9999-002.  A PUBLIC 
HEARING IS SCHEDULED FOR THIS MEETING UPON THE REZONING 
APPLICATION OF THIS MATTER. 

 
D. Business Matters (no Public Hearing is required upon the following matters; action may be   
                                           taken on all matters) 

 
1. HORIZON RESOURCE GROUP LLC TWO LOT RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT.  Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment application by the 
City of Franklin to change the future land use designation from Institutional Use 
and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to Residential Use and Areas of 
Natural Resource Features Use, for property zoned R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-
Family Residence District, located at approximately 9150 South 80th Street; Tax 
Key No. 885-9996-000.  

 
E. Adjournment 

 
*Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 



Franklin Plan Commission Agenda 
9/3/15 
Page 2 
 
**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have 
decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the 
Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 
 
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional 
information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 
 
REMINDERS: 
Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: September 17, 2015  



 
 City of Franklin 

Plan Commission Meeting 
August 6, 2015 

Minutes 
 

unapproved 
Amended at  

Item D.1. 

Call to Order and Roll Call A. Mayor Steve Olson called the August 6, 2015 
Regular Plan Commission meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. 
 
Present were Alderman Mark Dandrea and 
Commissioners David Fowler, Kevin Haley, Scott 
Thinnes and City Engineer Glen Morrow. 
Commissioner Patricia Hogan was excused. Also 
present were City Attorney Jesse Wesolowski, 
Planning Manager Joel Dietl and Senior Planner 
Nick Fuchs. In attendance was Alderwoman Janet 
Evans. 
 

Approval of Minutes B.  
Regular Meeting of July 23, 2015. 
 

1. Commissioner Fowler moved and Commissioner 
Haley seconded approval of the July 23, 2015 
minutes of the Regular meeting of the Plan 
Commission as presented. On voice vote, all voted 
'aye'. Motion carried. 
 

Public Hearing Business Matters C.  
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
RECORDING TIMEFRAME UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENT. Application by the City 
of Franklin to amend the Unified 
Development Ordinance text at Section 15-
7.0705 and Section 15-9.0309G.2. to allow 
a Certified Survey Map to be recorded 
within 12 months after the date of the last 
approval of the map and within 36 months 
after the date of the first approval of the 
map, as set forth in §236.34(2)(b)1. of the 
Wisconsin Statutes. 

1. Planning Manager Dietl presented the request for text 
amendment to the City of Franklin Unified 
Development Ordinance to be consistent with the 
timeframes outlined by Wisconsin State Statutes for 
the recording of Certified Survey Maps after 
Common Council approval. 
 
Senior Planner Fuchs read the Official Notice of 
Public Hearing for the request for Unified 
Development Ordinance text amendment by the City 
of Franklin in to the record. The Public Hearing was 
opened at 7:03 p.m. and closed at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved to recommend 
approval of an ordinance to amend the Unified 
Development Ordinance text to amend Section 15-
7.0705 and Section 15-9.0309G.2. to allow a 
Certified Survey Map to be recorded within 12 
months after the date of the last approval of the map 
and within 36 months after the date of the first 
approval of the map, as set forth in §236.34(2)(b)1. 
of the Wisconsin Statutes. Commissioner Haley 
seconded the motion. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. 
Motion carried. 
 

GENERAL OFFICE USE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENT. Application by the City 
of Franklin to amend the Unified  

2. Planning Manager Dietl presented the request for text 
amendment to the City of Franklin Unified 
Development Ordinance to create a general office use 
category as a permitted use in all non-residential  



 
Page Two 
 
Item C.2. continued 

 Plan Commission ~ Minutes 
August 6, 2015 

Development Ordinance to create a 
"General Office" use category in 
SECTION 15-3.0603 TABLE OF 
PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES IN 
ALL NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING 
DISTRICTS under the category of 
"OTHER USES NOT CLASSIFIED 
UNDER SIC CODE" and to define such 
use category in Section 15-11.0103 
SPECIFIC WORDS AND PHRASES. 
 

 zoning districts and recommend striking legal 
nonconforming use language. 
 
Senior Planner Fuchs read the Official Notice of 
Public Hearing for the request for Unified 
Development Ordinance text amendment by the City 
of Franklin in to the record. The Public Hearing was 
opened at 7:11 p.m. and closed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved to recommend 
approval of an ordinance to amend the Unified 
Development Ordinance to create a "General Office" 
use category in Section 15-3.0603 Table of Permitted 
and Special Uses in All Nonresidential Zoning 
Districts under the category of "Other Uses Not 
Classified under SIC Code" and to define such use 
category in Section 15-11.0103 Specific Words and 
Phrases, with the definition to include a square foot 
limit of +/- 1,000 square feet (final amount to be 
recommended to Common Council by staff) for 
office relocation within an existing building area.  
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. On voice vote, all 
voted 'aye'. Motion carried. 
 

SOUTHBROOK CHURCH 
EXPANSION. Natural Resource Features 
Special Exception application by 
Southbrook Church, Inc. to permit filling 
within approximately 2,770 square feet 
(0.064 acres) of wetland; grading, paving 
and planting turf grass within 
approximately 11,326 square feet (0.26 
acres) of wetland buffer and wetland 
setback; and grading and paving within 
approximately 14,810 square feet (0.34 
acres) of mature woodlands and 
approximately 17,424 square feet (0.40 
acres) of wetland setback; on the 
Southbrook Church property, located at 
11010 West St. Martins Road, zoned I-1 
Institutional District (Tax Key Nos. 799-
9967-003, 799-9967-004, 799-9967-005, 
799-9967-006 and 799-9967-007); for the 
purposes of the current and future 
development of the Church, the installation 
of a fire lane and to provide for a trail on 
the property that the City plans to develop. 
 

3. Planning Manager Dietl presented the application by 
Southbrook Church, Inc. for a Natural Resource 
Special Exception to allow for filling of wetland; 
grading, paving and planting of turf grass within a 
wetland buffer and wetland setback; and grading and 
paving within mature woodlands and wetland setback 
for the current and future development of the Church, 
the installation of a fire land and to provide for a trail 
on the property located at 11010 West St. Martins 
Road. 
 
Senior Planner Fuchs read the official notice of 
Public Hearing for the Natural Resource Special 
Exception in to the record. The Public Hearing was 
opened at 7:22 p.m. and closed at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Fowler motioned to recommend 
approval of the Southbrook Church, Inc. (David 
Hampson, Building committee/Property Owner) 
Natural Resource Features Special Exception 
pursuant to the Standards, Findings and Decision 
recommended by the Plan Commission and Common 
Council consideration of any Environmental 
Commission recommendations. Seconded by 
Alderman Dandrea. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'.  
Motion carried. 
 

STARFIRE SYSTEMS, INC. 
PARKING LOT. Natural Resource  

4. Planning Manager Dietl presented the application by 
Malek Family Limited Partnership for a Natural  



 
Page Three 
 
Item C.4. continued 

 Plan Commission ~ Minutes 
August 6, 2015 

Special Exception application for Starfire 
Systems, Inc. (Malek Family Limited 
Partnership, owner), to permit grading and 
paving within approximately 1,292.92 
square feet (0.032 acres) of wetland buffer 
and 2,352.2 square feet (0.054 acres) of 
wetland setback and onsite mitigation for 
the wetland buffer and wetland setback at a 
ratio of 1.5:1, for property located at 9825 
South 54th Street, such property being 
zoned Planned Development District 
Number 18, in the Franklin Business Park, 
(Tax Key No. 899-0044-000), to allow for 
the installation of a parking lot for Starfire 
Systems, Inc. 
 

 Resource Special Exception to allow for grading and 
paving with a wetland buffer and wetland setback 
and onsite mitigation for the wetland buffer and 
wetland setback for Starfire Systems, Inc. located at 
9825 South 54th Street. 
 
Senior Planner Fuchs read the official notice of 
Public Hearing for the Natural Resource Special 
Exception in to the record. The Public Hearing was 
opened at 7:39 p.m. and closed at 7:39 p.m. 
 
Alderman Dandrea motioned to recommend approval 
of the Starfire Systems, Inc. (Malek Family Limited 
Partnership, Owner) Natural Resource Special 
Exception pursuant to the Standards, Findings and 
Decision recommended by the Plan Commission and 
Common Council consideration of the Community 
Development Authority recommendations. Motion 
died due to lack of a second. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved to recommend denial 
of the Starfire Systems, Inc. Natural Resource 
Special Exception pursuant to the Standards, 
Findings and Decision recommended by the Plan 
Commission and Common Council consideration of 
the Community Development Authority 
recommendations. Seconded by Commissioner 
Thinnes. Motion withdrawn. 
 
Commissioner Morrow moved to suspend the regular 
order of business to allow the applicant, Mr. Darrel 
Malek, to speak. Seconded by Commissioner Fowler. 
All voted 'aye', motion carried. 
 
Alderman Dandrea moved to return to regular order 
of business. Seconded by Commissioner Fowler. All 
voted 'aye', motion carried. 
 
Commissioner Morrow motioned to recommend 
approval of the Starfire Systems, Inc. (Malek Family 
Limited Partnership, Owner) Natural Resource 
Special Exception pursuant to the Standards, 
Findings and Decision recommended by the Plan 
Commission with the conditions that the pavement 
used for the parking area be of pervious surface, 
include curb and gutter, a 10 foot width of natural 
plantings, voluntary buckthorn removal, and revision 
of the plans accordingly, and Common Council 
consideration of the Community Development 
Authority recommendations. Alderman Dandrea 
seconded the motion. All voted 'aye', motion carried. 
 
  



 
Page Four 
 

 Plan Commission ~ Minutes 
August 6, 2015 

 
Business Matters D.  
RAWSON PUB BAR/RESTAURANT 
WITH OUTDOOR 
ENTERTAINMENT/CONCERTS. 
Rezoning and Special Use applications 
[continued from July 23, 2015 Plan 
Commission meeting] by Steven D. 
Schweitzer (property owner) (property 
currently zoned M-2 General Industrial 
District; application pending for rezoning 
to B-2 General Business District; drinking 
places require Special Use approval in the 
B-2 District), to allow for a bar/restaurant 
with outdoor entertainment/concerts 
business use, with applications-related site 
development to include construction of a 
building addition for a kitchen on the 
southeast corner of the existing Rawson 
Pub building, the addition of a shed at the 
south end of the pub parking lot and 
installation of a dumpster enclosure, upon 
property located at 5621 West Rawson 
Avenue; Tax Key No. 758-9990-000. 
 

1. Planning Manager Dietl updated the Commissioners 
regarding the application by Steven D. Schweitzer 
for Rezoning from M-2 General Industrial District to 
B-2 General Business District to bring the 
establishment into compliance with current zoning 
code, and application for Special Use approval to 
allow for a bar/restaurant with outdoor 
entertainment/concerts business use, with site 
development to include construction of a building 
addition for a kitchen on the southeast corner of the 
existing Rawson Pub building, the addition of a shed 
at the south end of the pub parking lot and 
installation of a dumpster enclosure. 
 
Commissioner Morrow made a motion to 
recommend approval of an ordinance to amend the 
Unified Development Ordinance (Zoning Map) to 
rezone a certain parcel of land from M-2 General 
Industrial District to B-2 General Business District 
[located at 5621 West Rawson Avenue]. Seconded 
by Commissioner Haley. On voice vote, all voted 
'aye'.  Motion carried. 
 
Commissioner Fowler made a motion to recommend 
approval of a resolution imposing conditions and 
restrictions for the approval of a Special Use to allow 
for a bar/restaurant with outdoor 
entertainment/concerts business use upon property 
located at 5621 West Rawson Avenue. Seconded by 
Commissioner Haley. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. 
Motion carried. 
 

PLEASANT VIEW ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL BASKETBALL COURT 
ADDITION/RELOCATION. Landscape 
Plan submitted by Franklin Public Schools 
for the review and approval of the Plan 
commission and Common Council as 
required by the Natural Resource Special 
Exception approval by the Common 
Council on July 21, 2015, for property 
located at 4601 West Marquette Avenue, 
such property being zoned I-1 Institutional 
District (Tax Key No. 788-9980-000). 

2. Planning Manager Dietl presented the Landscape 
Plan for Pleasant View Elementary School, 4601 
West Marquette Avenue, as submitted by Franklin 
Public Schools and as required by the Natural 
Resource Special Exception approval by the 
Common Council on July 21, 2015. 
 
Commissioner Haley moved, and Commissioner 
Thinnes seconded to recommend approval of the 
Landscape Plan as presented by Franklin Public 
Schools for Pleasant View Elementary School, 
subject to the applicant's compliance with anticipated 
Common Council president plant list and Department 
of City Development review and review of location.  
On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion carried. 
 

Adjournment E. Commissioner Morrow moved and Commissioner 
Haley seconded to adjourn the Plan Commission 
meeting of August 6, 2015 at 8:27 p.m.  All voted 
‘aye’; motion carried. 

 



 
 City of Franklin 

Plan Commission Meeting 
August 20, 2015 

Minutes 
 
 

unapproved 

Call to Order and Roll Call A. Mayor Steve Olson called the August 20, 2015 
Regular Plan Commission meeting to order at 7:00 
p.m. in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. 
 
Present were Alderman Mark Dandrea and 
Commissioners David Fowler, Kevin Haley, Patricia 
Hogan, Scott Thinnes and City Engineer Glen 
Morrow. Also present were City Attorney Jesse 
Wesolowski, Planning Manager Joel Dietl and Senior 
Planner Nick Fuchs. In attendance was Alderwoman 
Janet Evans. 
 

Approval of Minutes B.  
Regular Meeting of August 6, 2015. 
 

1. Commissioner Fowler moved and Alderman Dandrea 
seconded approval of the August 6, 2015 minutes of 
the Regular meeting of the Plan Commission as 
presented. Motion withdrawn. 
 
Commissioner Morrow moved to table the minutes 
of the regular meeting of the Plan Commission for 
August 6, 2015 for review by Staff of Item D.1.  
Seconded by Commissioner Haley. On voice vote, all 
voted 'aye'. Motion carried. 
 

Public Hearing Business Matters C.  
MISSION HILLS APARTMENTS. 
Special Use Amendment application by 
Franklin Mission Hills, LLC to revise the 
parking ratio to 129 underground spaces 
and 344 surface parking spaces, for a total 
of 473 parking spaces and to revise the 
number of swimming pools from 2 pools to 
1 pool within the apartment development 
located at 7711-7759 and 7811-7859 South 
Scepter Drive, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family 
Residence District and C-1 Conservancy 
District; Tax Key Nos. 795-0134-000 and 
795-9999-002. 

1. Planning Manager Dietl presented the application by 
Franklin Mission Hills, LLC to amend the Special 
Use for the total parking spaces and number of 
inground swimming pools for Mission Hills 
Apartments, zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence 
District and C-1 Conservancy District, to match the 
current improvements at the site. 
 
Senior Planner Fuchs read the Official Notice of 
Public Hearing for the Special Use Amendment for 
the properties located at 7711-7759 and 7811-7859 
South Scepter Drive in to the record. The Public 
Hearing was opened at 7:06 p.m. and closed at 7:08 
p.m. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved to recommend 
approval of a resolution to amend Resolution Nos. 
1970-446, 2006-6196, 2007-6390 and 2008-6456 
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval 
of a Special Use for the Mission Hills Apartment 
development located at 7711-7759 and 7811-7859 
South Scepter Drive to revise the parking spaces and 
swimming pool quantity upon the property with the 
added conditions that pursuant to the Staff report 
suggestion, the applicant shall install an internal  



 
Page Two 
 
 
Item C.1. continued 

 Plan Commission ~ Minutes 
August 20, 2015 

  walkway connecting Phase I and Phase II and to 
enclose dumpsters within Phase 1 and Phase 2 with 
design and location to be submitted to the 
Department of City Development for review and 
approval by staff. Commissioner Hogan seconded the 
motion. On voice vote, all voted 'aye'. Motion 
carried. 
 

Business Matters D.  
CREATIVE HOMES, INC. LAND 
DIVISION. Certified Survey Map 
application by Creative Homes, Inc. for 
division of an existing lot into 4 single- 
family lots, for property zoned R-6 
Suburban Single-Family Residence District 
located at 8011 South 76th Street; Tax Key 
No. 803-9980-001. 
 

1. Planning Manager Dietl presented the application for 
Certified Survey Map by Creative Homes, Inc. for 
property located at 8011 South 76th Street, zoned R- 
6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District. 
 
Commissioner Fowler moved to recommend 
approval of a resolution conditionally approving a 4 
lot Certified Survey Map, being a redivision of 
Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 3504, being a 
part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of 
Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the 
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.  
Seconded by Commissioner Haley. On voice vote, all 
voted 'aye'. Motion carried. 
 

Adjournment E. Commissioner Thinnes moved and Alderman 
Dandrea seconded to adjourn the Plan Commission 
meeting of August 20, 2015 at 7:20 p.m.  All voted 
‘aye’; motion carried. 

 



      C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N       
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 
Meeting of September 3, 2015 

 
Planned Development District 

And Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment 

Item ___ 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed 
Planned Development District No. 38 (Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force), and of the 
associated Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment, subject to the conditions of approval in 
attached draft ordinances. 

Project Name:  PDD No. 38 (Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force) 
and CMP Amendment 

Project Address: Approximately 9000 South 68th Street 

Applicants: James Keegan, Milwaukee County Parks Department 
 Matt King, Hunger Task Force 

Property Owner: Milwaukee County  

Current Zoning: A-1 Agricultural District 

2025 Comprehensive Plan: Commercial and Areas of Natural Resource Features  
Use of Surrounding Properties: Milwaukee County Farm/Root River Parkway to the north; 

Ryan Road (State Trunk Highway 100), commercial, and 
Root River Parkway to the south; Root River Parkway to 
the east; and Milwaukee County House of Correction to the 
west. 

Applicant’s Action Requested: Recommendation to the Common Council for approval of 
the proposed Planned Development District and of the 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment. 

 
Please note: 

• Staff recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft ordinance. 

• Staff suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft ordinance. 
 
 

INTRODUCTION:  
On July 13, 2015, Mr. Matt King, on behalf of the Hunger Task Force and the Milwaukee 
County Parks Department, submitted a Planned Development District (PDD) application for a 
portion of the existing Milwaukee County Farm property located at approximately 9000 South 
68th Street.  The applicants propose to create a mixed use agricultural, recreational, and 
educational PDD for the subject property (if approved, the subject property would thus be 
rezoned from A-1 Agricultural District to Planned Development District No. 38).   
 

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text
C.1.

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text

nickf
Typewritten Text



 2 

On July 30, 2015, the applicants also submitted a Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment 
application for the subject property, to change the future land use of the property from 
Commercial and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Mixed Use and Areas of Natural 
Resource Features. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
According to the applicants, since 1984, the Milwaukee County Farm has operated a fish 
hatchery to help stock Milwaukee County Park lagoons for recreational fishing purposes, and 
since 1993, has also operated community gardens at this site.  In 2012, the Hunger Task Force 
entered into a 30-year lease with Milwaukee County for use of the Milwaukee County Farm 
property to grow and harvest produce (primarily fruits and vegetables) for its food pantry 
network.  Shortly thereafter, a youth nutrition education program, with classroom space and a 
kitchen, was established in the large barn located at the County Farm. 
 
However, pursuant to the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance, a fish hatchery 
within the A-1 zoning district requires Special Use approval, which has not been obtained, and 
the youth nutrition education program in not a permitted use within the A-1 zoning district. 
 
On September 24, 2014, representatives of the Hunger Task Force met with Planning 
Department staff to discuss a proposed conversion of the Milwaukee County Farm’s currently 
abandoned granary building into a new Visitor Center.  During that meeting, staff indicated that 
some of the existing uses at the County Farm property did not have any zoning approvals from 
the City, and furthermore, that the proposed Visitor Center was not an allowed use within the A-
1 zoning district.  Staff therefore suggested that the Hunger Task Force contact Milwaukee 
County to consider obtaining such zoning approvals prior to, or concurrently with, the proposed 
Visitor Center.  Staff further suggested that one means of obtaining all such approvals, and of 
acknowledging the mixed-use nature of the property, could be through the rezoning of the 
subject property into a Planned Development District. 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The proposed Planned Development District No. 38 (Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task 
Force) encompasses an approximately 55-acre parcel located at the northeast corner of S. 68th 
Street and Ryan Road/Hwy 100, which is owned by Milwaukee County, and is under the 
jurisdiction of the Milwaukee County Parks Department. The property is currently zoned A-1 
Agricultural District, is currently used for agricultural/recreational/educational uses, and is 
planned for future commercial uses (within the City’s Comprehensive Master Plan). 
 
It can be noted that the approximately 39-acre parcel located immediately to the north of the 
subject parcel is also part of the Milwaukee County Farm and is also currently zoned A-1 
Agricultural District, but is not part of the proposed Planned Development District.  Staff 
suggests that the 39-acre parcel be included within the proposed PDD.  
 
Please note that throughout this report the P-1 Park District standards, as well as all applicable 
standards of the Unified Development Ordinance, have been utilized for comparisons to the 



 3 

standards proposed for the mixed-use agricultural, recreational, and educational development.  
Unless otherwise stated, these P-1 standards are intended to form the basis of proposed PDD No. 
38 as proposed by the applicants. 
 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment: 

Comprehensive Master Plan Consistency 
Consistent with, as defined by Wisconsin State Statute; means “furthers or does 
not contradict the objectives, goals, and policies contained in the comprehensive 
plan.” 

 
The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan (CMP) identifies the subject property as 
Commercial and Areas of Natural Resource Features.  However, the existing and proposed land 
uses are agricultural, recreational, and educational, and the proposed zoning is mixed-use 
Planned Development District.  To establish consistency between the Comprehensive Master 
Plan and the proposed uses and proposed zoning, an amendment of the Comprehensive Master 
Plan is necessary. 
 
Staff would note that the proposed PDD No. 38 is consistent with the following principles, goals, 
and objectives set forth within the Comprehensive Master Plan, including but not limited to: 

• Utility and Community Facilities Principle, “Provide City residents access to parks, open 
space, and a wide range of recreational programs and facilities that help to promote an active 
and healthy lifestyle.” 

 
• Agricultural Goal, “Preserve and enhance the City’s community character, including 

individual planning area identities, while directing growth and development.”  And it’s 
associated objective, “Allow existing agriculture land to remain in farming production until 
alternative long-term uses are identified and come to fruition.” 

 
• Land Use Goal, “Accommodate (where appropriate) mixed use development within 

identified districts and commercial areas.”  And it’s associated objective, “Include public 
open space within, and adjacent to, mixed use developments.” 

 
• Land Use Goal, “Build community identity by revitalizing … important areas of the City, 

enforcing appropriate design standards, and by creating and preserving varied and unique 
development and land uses.” 

 
Based upon the information provided by the applicants, and the information noted in this report, 
it is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed PDD No. 38 would be consistent with a 
preponderance of the principles, goals, objectives, and policies set forth in the Comprehensive 
Master Plan.  Therefore, staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Master Plan 
amendment, to change the Future Land Use for this area from Commercial to Mixed Use. 
 
 



 4 

Planned Development District No. 38: 

As proposed, Planned Development District No. 38, as a mixed compatible uses PDD, is in 
compliance with the general intent, land use intensity, and the minimum land area requirements 
of planned development districts as set forth in Division 15-3.0400 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance.   
 
However, while public sanitary sewer and water service is required for all Planned Development 
Districts, and the applicants have indicated that they have and will continue to provide such 
services to the Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force development, it is not clear which 
buildings and uses are currently provided and/or are envisioned to be provided, such services.  
Nor is it clear which portions, if any, of the public sewer and water systems the City of Franklin 
owns or may be responsible for, and thus, should be placed within appropriate easements.  
Therefore, pursuant to Section 15-9.0208 of the UDO, staff recommends that the applicants 
revise the Project Narrative and/or Site Figure to clearly indicate which buildings and uses are 
currently provided, and are envisioned to be provided, public sewer and water services, and 
which systems or portions of such systems should be placed within appropriate easements, for 
Planning and Engineering Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit.  Staff further recommends that any such easements be prepared by the 
applicants, reviewed by staff, and approved by the Common Council, prior to issuance of any 
Occupancy Permit. 
 
The draft PDD No. 38 ordinance utilizes the P-1 Park District setbacks and zoning requirements 
pursuant to Table 15-3.0313 of the UDO, except for minimum building and parking setbacks 
when such structures are located adjacent to interior lot lines (defined as when abutting another 
property owned by Milwaukee County and under the jurisdiction of the County Parks 
Department) and zoned A-1 Agricultural District.   
 
The proposed PDD is also generally in compliance with the use standards of the P-1 Park 
District.  As set forth in the draft ordinance, PDD No. 38 would also allow a number of 
agriculturally related uses, warehousing and storage of Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task 
Force operations related equipment, the proposed Visitor Center, and the youth nutrition 
education program, as permitted uses.  PDD No. 38 would also allow livestock as a special use.  
In addition, PDD No. 38 would prohibit several of the uses allowed within the P-1 Park District 
such as motorized activities, shooting ranges, hunting, campgrounds, etc.   
 
Furthermore, as set forth in the draft ordinance, PDD No. 38 would also allow certain additional 
temporary uses such as farmers markets, harvest festivals, Hunger Task Force fundraisers, etc., 
and certain additional accessory uses such as temporary livestock grazing and general office.  
However, PDD No. 38 would not allow such accessory uses as servants and laborers quarters, 
etc. 
 
Site Plan: 

As previously noted, while the proposed PDD No. 38 does not encompass all of the Milwaukee 
County Farm property, it does encompass all of the actively used buildings and structures 
associated with the farming and Hunger Task Force operations.  This includes the 
barn/hatchery/office space building, the old granary building/proposed Visitor Center, the fish 



 5 

ponds, etc. as shown and labeled on the Site Figure.  It also includes some of the actual farm 
fields and orchards as well.  The applicants have also submitted a Site Plan which depicts the site 
changes associated with the proposed Visitor Center.   
 
As the subject property is adjacent to STH 100/Ryan Road, and pursuant to Section 15-7.0103 of 
the UDO, staff recommends that the applicants obtain verification from the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation that the appropriate right-of-way and access restrictions are 
incorporated onto the Site Figure, for staff review and approval prior to issuance of any 
Occupancy Permit. 
 
As PDD No. 38 is proposed to be a mixed use agricultural, recreational, and educational 
development with public access (children’s classroom activities, volunteer labor, special events, 
etc.), staff recommends that the applicants revise the Site Figure to also include additional 
sidewalks connecting any adjacent parking lot(s) to the barn/hatchery/office space building, for 
Planning Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any Occupancy Permit.  
Staff further recommends that any such sidewalks be constructed within one year of City 
approval of this Planned Development District.  In addition, staff suggests that additional 
sidewalks and/or trails be constructed, connecting the subject parking lots and buildings to the 
existing trails located east of these buildings. 
 
Staff would note, and the applicants are aware, that plans and details of certain envisioned 
facilities, such as additional storage buildings, the pavilion, etc., have not been submitted nor 
finalized by the applicants at this time and would therefore need future City approvals. 
 
Hours of Operation: 

The applicants indicate that the hours of operation for the Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task 
Force development are generally from 7:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., with shorter hours in the winter. 
 
Consistent with many other developments in the City, staff recommends that truck shipments and 
deliveries, and refuse collection, shall be prohibited between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 
a.m. 
 
Parking: 

The applicants request that all parking lots, driveways, and access drives, other than those 
leading to the proposed Visitor Center (which will be paved), be allowed to remain as is 
(constructed of compacted gravel). 
 
It should be noted that neither the Site Plan nor the Site Figure depict all of the Milwaukee 
County Farm/Hunger Task Force’s parking related features, such as the loading/unloading areas 
by the barn/hatchery/office space building, or other driveways/access drives through the 
development.  In addition, there appears to be conflicts or overlap between the existing gravel 
driveways and the proposed paved driveway and parking lot adjacent to the Visitor Center.  
Therefore, pursuant to Sections 15-7.0102 and 15-7.0103 of the UDO, staff recommends that the 
applicants revise the Site Figure or prepare a Parking Plan to depict all driveways, parking lots, 



 6 

and loading/unloading areas, for Planning Department staff review and approval prior to 
issuance of any Building Permit.   
 
In addition, the Fire Department has previously indicated the need to identify an emergency 
access through this development, and verification that such emergency access meets the needs of 
the Fire Department.  Therefore, staff recommends that the applicants revise the Site Figure 
and/or prepare a Parking Plan to depict an emergency access drive through the farm complex 
for the review and approval of the Fire Department prior to issuance of any Building Permit.  
Staff further recommends that the applicants construct the emergency access drive, to the Fire 
Department’s standards, prior to issuance of any Occupancy Permit unless otherwise 
determined by the Fire Department. 
 
The UDO, pursuant to Sections 15-5.0202, 15-5.0203, 15-5.0204, and 15-5.0205, generally 
requires that off-street parking areas: 

• be provided for all uses and all new, enlarged, extended, etc. buildings; 
• be improved with concrete or asphalt surfaces; 
• provide a certain minimum quantity of parking spaces; 
• provide certain access and parking space sizes; 
• provide certain minimum parking setbacks; and 
• provide certain minimum loading and unloading spaces. 

 
However, due to the unique nature of the proposed PDD, staff supports, and the UDO’s intent of 
planned development districts allow, some flexibility to such parking standards.  Therefore, staff 
recommends that the applicants revise the Site Figure and/or prepare a Parking Plan to depict 
as paved all parking lot(s), driveway(s), access drive(s), loading/unloading area(s), etc. which 
would likely be used by the general public, for Planning Department staff review and approval 
prior to issuance of any Building Permit.  Staff further recommends that any such parking 
related facilities be constructed to City standards within one year of City approval of the 
Planned Development District.  In addition, staff suggests that employee parking areas, and any 
areas subject to significant amounts of truck traffic, also be paved. 
 
Staff would note, that should the use of any parking facility or associated building change, or 
new building(s) be constructed, such parking related changes shall be reviewed as, and be subject 
to the standards of, a site plan amendment as set forth in the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
Landscaping: 

The applicants have not submitted a Landscape Plan, but rather, have indicated that areas 
disturbed during construction of the Visitor Center and associated parking lot will be restored 
with native plantings of grasses and perennials, and that in the future, additional apple trees will 
be planted west of the parking lot.  It can also be noted that some landscaping is present along S. 
68th Street and that many trees are present throughout the subject area. 
 
The UDO, pursuant to Sections 15-7.0103 and 15-9.0208, requires that landscaping: 

• be provided in all planned development districts and be set forth in a Landscape Plan 
meeting the requirements of UDO Sections 15-5.0300 and 15-7.0300; and 



 7 

• need not be detailed at the time of the PDD rezoning, provided that it is of sufficient 
detail for the Plan Commission’s and Common Council’s review, and that any approval 
be subject to a more detailed and specific plan to be provided and approved with each 
appropriate stage of development. 

 
However, due to the unique nature of the proposed PDD, staff supports, and the UDO’s intent of 
planned development districts allow, some flexibility to such landscaping standards.  Therefore, 
staff recommends that the applicants submit a Landscape Plan for those parking lot(s) generally 
accessible to the public, for Planning Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of 
any Building Permit. 
 
Snow Storage Plan: 

The applicants have not submitted a Snow Storage Plan, but rather, have indicated that the 
Hunger Task Force currently, and for the near future, will contract with a snow removal/storage 
services company.   
 
Lighting: 

The applicants have not submitted a Lighting Plan, but rather, indicate that existing lighting will 
be retained, and that new pedestrian scale bollard lighting will be added adjacent to the proposed 
Visitor Center.   
 
Due to the unique nature of the proposed PDD, staff supports, and the UDO’s intent of planned 
development districts allow, some flexibility to such lighting standards.  Therefore, staff 
recommends that the applicants prepare a Lighting Plan which depicts pedestrian scale bollard 
lighting at all parking lot(s) and along all sidewalks which are envisioned to be utilized by the 
general public, for Planning Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit. 
 
Architecture: 

Other than for the proposed Visitor Center (which staff has no recommended changes to), the 
applicants have not provided any architectural plans for the buildings within the proposed PDD.  
However, the applicants have provided photographs of the existing buildings.   
 
Due to the unique nature of the proposed PDD, staff supports, and the UDO’s intent of planned 
development districts allow, some flexibility to such architectural standards.  Therefore, staff has 
no objection to the use of the photographs in lieu of architectural plans/elevations for the existing 
buildings.  The draft PDD No. 38 ordinance also provides that customary and routine 
maintenance of these buildings is anticipated and hereby approved. 
 
Stormwater Management: 
The applicants have not submitted a Stormwater Management Plan, but rather, have indicated 
that new impervious surface will be less than 0.5 acres, and as such, does not require any 
stormwater management.  Therefore, staff recommends the applicants obtain verification that a 
Stormwater Management Plan is not required, or obtain final approval of a Stormwater 
Management Plan, from the Engineering Department prior to issuance of any Building Permit.    



 8 

 
Signage: 

The applicants have not depicted any signage for the proposed PDD.  As such, separate 
approvals will be necessary for any future signage.   
 
Natural Resource Protection Plan: 

The applicants have not submitted a complete Natural Resource Protection Plan, but rather, have 
only depicted the existing woodlands, wetlands, and wetland buffers utilizing best available 
information.  In particular, the applicants have not: 

• provided the date and source of the natural resource information; 
• obtained field verification of any natural resource features; 
• depicted the wetland setbacks; 
• confirmed the presence (or absence) of a possible navigable stream and associated shore 

buffer located east of the existing fish ponds; 
• graphically indicated which natural resources are to remain undeveloped and which (if 

any) are to be disturbed or removed; and 
• indicated the method of preservation of the natural resource features which must be 

protected, nor has prepared such documents for Common Council review and 
consideration. 

 
The UDO, pursuant to Sections 15-3.0401C., 15-3.0403B., and 15-9.0208B.1.f., in particular to 
Planned Development Districts, require that a Natural Resource Protection Plan meeting the 
requirements set forth in 15-7.0200 of the UDO be prepared. 
 
Therefore, staff recommends that the applicants submit a detailed Natural Resource Protection 
Plan, which meets the requirements set forth in Divisions 15-4.0100 and 15-7.0200 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, for review and approval by Planning Department staff prior to 
issuance of any Occupancy Permit. 
 
Staff can note that the City of Franklin required as a condition of approval, and the applicants 
provided, a complete Natural Resource Protection Plan for Planned Development District No. 37 
(The Rock Sports Complex) in 2012. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
Planning Department staff recommends approval of Planned Development District No. 38 
(Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force), and of the associated Comprehensive Master 
Plan, subject to the conditions set forth in the draft ordinance.   
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
              PLAN COMMISSION           [Draft 8-26-15] 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THE ADOPTION OF AN  

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025  
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN  

2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 
9000 SOUTH 68TH STREET FROM COMMERCIAL USE TO MIXED USE, PURSUANT 

TO WIS. STAT. § 66.1001(4)(b) 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of 

Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in 
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(b), the Plan Commission may 

recommend the amendment of the Comprehensive Master Plan to the Common Council by 
adopting a resolution by a majority vote of the entire Commission, which vote shall be 
recorded in the official minutes of the Plan Commission; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Milwaukee County Parks/Hunger Task Force have applied for an 
amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future 
Land Use Map designation for property located at approximately 9000 South 68th Street, 
from Commercial Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Mixed Use and Areas of 
Natural Resource Features, such property bearing Tax Key No. 883-9999-002, more 
particularly described as follows:  
 

COMM. 1860 FT W OF SE COR OF SE 22 5 21 THEN 1320 FEET NELY 
1410.46 FT W TO NW COR SD QUAR S TO SW COR SD QUAR THE E TO 
BEG CONT 55.758 ACS; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having determined that the proposed amendment, 
in form and content as presented to the Commission on September 3, 2015, in conjunction 
with an application to rezone the subject property as is more particularly described within the 
ordinance draft presented to the Commission for such purpose, is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Master Plan’s goals, objectives and policies and in proper form and content 
for adoption by the Common Council as an amendment to the 2025 Comprehensive Master 
Plan, subject to such modifications the Common Council may consider reasonable and 
necessary, following public hearing, in order to protect and promote the health, safety and 
welfare of the City of Franklin. 
  
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -____ 
Page 2 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the application for and the proposed ordinance to amend the City of 
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land  

Use Map designation for property located at approximately 9000 South 68th Street, from 
Commercial Use to Mixed Use, be and the same is hereby recommended for adoption and 
incorporation into the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan by the Common Council. 

 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
 _______ day of ____________________, 2015. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       Stephen R. Olson, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
                    [Draft 8-11-15] 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025  
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF FRANKLIN  

2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 9000 
SOUTH 68TH STREET FROM COMMERCIAL USE TO MIXED USE 

(APPROXIMATELY 50.6 ACRES) 
(MILWAUKEE COUNTY PARKS DEPARTMENT/HUNGER TASK FORCE, 

APPLICANTS) 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 62.23(2) and (3) and 66.1001(4), the City of 

Franklin is authorized to prepare and adopt and to amend a comprehensive plan as defined in 
Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(1)(a) and 66.1001(2); and 
  
 WHEREAS, Milwaukee County Parks Department/Hunger Task Force have applied 
for an amendment to the Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 
Future Land Use Map designation for property located at approximately 9000 South 68th 
Street from Commercial Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features to Mixed Use and 
Areas of Natural Resource Features; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin by a majority vote of the 
entire Commission on September 3, 2015, recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a 
resolution recommending to the Common Council the adoption of the Ordinance to Amend 
the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of Franklin 2025 
Future Land Use Map for property located at approximately 9000 South 68th Street from 
Commercial Use to Mixed Use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Franklin held a public hearing upon this proposed Ordinance, 
in compliance with the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 66.1001(4)(d); the Common Council 
having received input from the public at a duly noticed public hearing on September 15, 
2015; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: The City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan is hereby 

amended to change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use Map 
designation for property located at approximately 9000 South 68th 
Street from Commercial Use to Mixed Use. Such property is more 
particularly as follows: 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-____ 
Page 2 
 

COMM. 1860 FT W OF SE COR OF SE 22 5 21 THEN 1320 FEET 
NELY 1410.46 FT W TO NW COR SD QUAR S TO SW COR SD  
 
QUAR THE E TO BEG CONT 55.758 ACS; Tax Key No.: 883-9999-
002.  

  
SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any 

term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 

ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage and publication. 
 
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of __________________, 2015, by Alderman ___________________. 

 
Passed and adopted by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common Council 

at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this _______ day of 
____________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
              
       Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______    
 
 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN              CITY OF FRANKLIN              MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
[Draft 8-26-15] 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE SECTION 15-3.0443 OF THE FRANKLIN 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 38 (MILWAUKEE COUNTY FARM/HUNGER TASK 
FORCE) AND TO REZONE PROPERTY FROM A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 38  
(AT APPROXIMATELY 9000 SOUTH 68TH STREET) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, a petition for zoning change having been filed to change the zoning on a 
tract of land from A-1 Agricultural District to a Planned Development District, which tract of 
land is located at approximately 9000 South 68th Street, bearing tax key no. 883-9999-002, and 
is more particularly described below; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Plan Commission on the 3rd day of 
September, 2015, and the Plan Commission having reviewed the Planned Development District 
No. 38 petition and having found that the proposed Planned Development District conforms to 
the standards for adoption of a Planned Development District, and having recommended to the 
Common Council that the creation of Planned Development District No. 38 be approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having concurred 
with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that the proposed 
Planned Development District No. 38 (Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force) is 
consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and 
contains more than 3 acres; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed the petition and recommendation 
following the Public Hearing and having determined that the adoption of an ordinance to create 
Planned Development District No. 38 will promote the health, safety and welfare of the 
Community. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1:  §15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to provide that the zoning district 
designation for the property described below be changed from A-1 Agricultural 
District to Planned Development District No. 38 (Milwaukee County 
Farm/Hunger Task Force) as is created under SECTION 2 of this Ordinance: 

 
COM 1860 FT W OF SE COR OF SE 22 5 21 THEN 1320 FT NELY 1410.46 
FT W TO NW COR SD QUAR S TO SW COR SD QUAR THE E TO BEG 
CONT 55.758 ACS. 



 2 

 
 
SECTION 2: §15-3.0443 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, 

Wisconsin, is hereby created to read as follows: 
 
Section 15-3.0443 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 38  

(MILWAUKEE COUNTY FARM/HUNGER TASK FORCE) 
 
A. Exhibits.  This Planned Development District shall be constructed, operated and 

maintained in conformance with the following listed Exhibits, all containing matters 
approved hereunder or by the separate approval of the Common Council as set forth 
below, and all applicable terms and provisions of the Municipal Code and the Unified 
Development Ordinance not enumerated herein and not contrary to the terms or 
provisions of this ordinance, including, but not limited to such permits as are required 
under Division 15-8.0200 Construction, Division 15-8.0300 Construction Site Erosion 
Control Division 15-8.0600 Stormwater Management. The plans contained in the 
following listed Exhibits may be adjusted in minor detail and so noted prior to 
construction upon the written approval of the City Engineer or City Planning Manager in 
order to comply with all of the conditions of this Ordinance. 

 
1. Exhibit A:  Site Figure, approved under this ordinance. 

 
2. Exhibit B:  Site Plan, approved under this ordinance 

 
3. Exhibit C:  Landscape Plan, approved under this ordinance (to be submitted). 

 
4. Exhibit D:  Lighting Plan, approved under this ordinance (to be submitted). 

 
5. Exhibit E:  Grading Plan, approved under this ordinance (to be submitted). 

 
6. Exhibit F:  Utility Plan, approved under this ordinance (to be submitted). 

 
7. Exhibit G:  Stormwater Management Plan, approved under this ordinance (to be 

submitted). 
 

8. Exhibit H:  Natural Resource Protection Plan, approved under this ordinance. 
 

9. Exhibit I:  Existing Building Elevations, approved under this ordinance (which shall 
be subject to reasonable modifications by the applicant to be reviewed and approved 
by Department of City Development Staff, approval of which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld). 

 
10. Exhibit J:  Granary Alteration & Addition, approved under this ordinance. 

 



 3 

11. Exhibit K:  Sign Plan, subject to compliance with the City of Franklin Municipal 
Code, as amended, review and approval by the Architectural Review Board and 
issuance of a Sign Permit through the Inspection Department (to be submitted). 

 
12. Exhibit L:  Easement Documents (Conservation Easement, Water Main Easement, 

and Sanitary Sewer Easement) (to be submitted). 
 
B. District Intent. It is the intent of the Planned Development District No. 38 to provide a 

agricultural-, recreational-, and educational-related mixed use development. All 
development within Planned Development District No. 38 shall comply with the 
standards and requirements of the P-1 Park District and all other applicable zoning 
requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance, except as otherwise specifically set 
forth in this Planned Development District No. 38. All development within Planned 
Development District No. 38 shall be served by public sanitary sewer and water supply 
facilities, except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Planned Development District, 
and as may otherwise be determined by the Common Council.  All decisions upon 
approvals to be made hereunder shall be made upon the application of such intent and 
standards and requirements. 

 
C. Permitted, Special, Accessory and Prohibited Uses. 

 
1. District Permitted Uses.  The following are permitted uses in Planned 

Development District No. 38: 
 

a. The Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force as depicted in Exhibits A 
through J.  
 

b. General farms. 

c. Raising/harvesting crops. 

d. Orchards. 

e. Crop services. 

f. Crop planting. 

g. Crop Harvesting. 

h. Food Production. 

i. Tree nursery. 

j. Nature areas/trails. 

k. Youth education. 

l. Visitor center. 

m. Pavilion. 

n. Storage buildings. 



 4 

o. Production of ornamental floriculture and other nursery products. 

p. Warehousing and storage for farm produce, farm vehicles, and equipment, 
tools, and supplies, associated with the Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task 
Force operations. 

q. Temporary Uses/Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Events as permitted 
by the Unified Development Ordinance and Municipal Code, and including 
such farming and agricultural related events as farmers markets, harvest 
festivals, Hunger Task Force fundraisers, etc. 
 

r. Those uses permitted within the P-1 Park District. 

s. Except as set forth under subs. a. above, those uses found to be similar to the 
above permitted uses under the terms of §15-2.0210 of this ordinance.  

 
Review and approval required.  Except for the permitted uses set forth in subs. a. 
above, which are conditionally approved under this ordinance, permitted uses are 
subject to site plan review and approval under the terms of §15-7.0100 of this 
Ordinance.  

 
2. District Special Uses. The following are special uses in Planned Development 

District No. 38: 
 

a. Those special uses allowed within the P-1 Park District. 

b. Agricultural Production - Livestock. 

c. Those uses found to be similar to the above special uses under the terms of 
§15-2.0210 of this Ordinance. 
 

Review and approval required.  Special uses are subject to special use review and 
approval under the terms of §15-3.0701 and §15-3.0703 and site plan review and 
approval under the terms of §15-7.0100 of this Ordinance. 

 
3. District Accessory Uses. The following are accessory uses in Planned 

Development District No. 38: 
 

a. Those general accessory uses allowed within §15-3.0801 of this Ordinance 
except for servants, owners, itinerant agricultural laborers, and watchmen’s 
temporary quarters, and the like. 

 
b. Livestock for limited and temporary grazing purposes only. 

 
c. General office uses. 

 
d. Those detailed nonresidential accessory uses allowed within §15-3.0803A., 

§15-3.0803G., and §15-3.0803I of this Ordinance. 
 



 5 

e. Those uses found to be similar to the above accessory uses under the terms of 
§15-2.0210 of this Ordinance. 

 
Review and approval required.  Accessory uses are subject to zoning compliance 
permit review and approval under the terms of §15-9.0102 of this Ordinance. 

 
3. District Prohibited Uses.  The following uses shall be prohibited in Planned 

Development District No. 38, including when proposed as accessory to a 
Permitted or a Special Use: 

 
a. Motorized recreational vehicles including but not limited to snowmobiles, 

dune buggies, motorcycles, dirt bikes and all-terrain vehicles, except for 
grounds keeping operations. 
 

b. Convenience stores. 

c. Hunting, trapping, game propagation. 

d. Automobile racing, including track operation. 

e. Cabins or cottages (rental). 

f. Campgrounds (rental, for tents and/or recreational vehicles). 

g. Firearm Ranges (indoor and outdoor). 

h. All uses not listed as a permitted use, special use or accessory use thereto 
within the P-1 Park District. 

 
D. District Standards.  Planned Development District No. 38 is further intended to have the 

following development standards: 
 

1. Landscape Surface Ratio and Floor Area.  PDD No. 38 shall maintain a 
minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) of .50 and Floor Area Standards in 
compliance with P-1 Park District standards pursuant to Table 15-3.0313. 

 
2. Lot Dimensional Requirements. 

 
a. Minimum Lot Area (s.f.):     2 acres 

b. Minimum Lot Width at Setback Line (feet):  100 

c. Minimum Front Yard (feet):    50 

d. Minimum Side Yard (feet)(a):    20 

e. Minimum Side Yard on Corner Lot (feet):  50 

f. Minimum Rear Yard (feet)(a):    50 

g. Minimum Shore Buffer (feet):    75 

h. Minimum Wetland Buffer (feet):    30 



 6 

i. Minimum Wetland Setback (feet):   50 

(a) Upon approval of site plans, the Plan Commission may waive the minimum 
building setbacks from the interior lot line of a property zoned PDD No. 38 when 
abutting another property owned by the Milwaukee County Parks Department and 
zoned A-1 Agricultural District. The Plan Commission shall consider the 
applicable standards for Site Plan, Special Use and Land Division applications in 
making such determination. 
 

3. Maximum Building Height:  2.0 stories/35 feet 
 

E. Approved Uses. 
 

The Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force development for the time period as set 
forth in this ordinance is an “approved use” under this ordinance.  The following terms 
and provisions of this subs. E. shall only apply to such approved uses where the subject 
matter of the following terms and provisions is not otherwise addressed or depicted in the 
Exhibits to this ordinance.  The following terms and provisions of this subs. E. shall 
apply to all future uses of the property within the District. 
 
1. Site Restrictions: 

 
a. Accessory Structures: 
 
Accessory structures not depicted upon any Exhibit to this ordinance shall require 
approval under §15-9.0102 of this Ordinance and the Zoning Administrator shall 
apply the standards of this ordinance upon the review of an application therefore. 
 
 
b. Fencing:  
 
Fencing not depicted upon any Exhibit to this ordinance shall require approval 
under §15-3.0803 of this Ordinance and the Zoning Administrator shall apply the 
standards of this ordinance upon the review of an application thereof.   
 
c. Temporary Structures: 
 
No temporary structures or trailers are permitted without prior written approval of 
the Plan Commission. 
 
d. Ancillary Structures: 
 
No water tower, storage tank, processing equipment, solar collector, 
telecommunications equipment, cooling tower, satellite disks or other ancillary 
structure or outside equipment shall be constructed, erected or placed in the 
District without the prior written approval of the Plan Commission. 
 



 7 

e. Signs: 
 
All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal Code, as amended, approved 
by the Architectural Review Board and subject to issuance of a Sign Permit 
through the Inspection Department.  On-site directional signage may be allowed 
in any area needed to control traffic or parking provided such signage has 
received approval from the Architectural Review Board.  
 
 

2. Parking:  
 
a. Parking Generally: 
 
The Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force shall be provided with adequate 
paved off-street automobile parking as approved by the Plan Commission.  No 
visitor or employee parking will be permitted on any street, driveway, or any 
place in the District other than in approved parking spaces.  Overnight parking of 
campers, mobile homes, boats, trailers and similar vehicles is prohibited unless 
prior written approval is obtained from the Plan Commission.  Overnight parking 
of farm equipment, trucks and service vehicles shall be within approved storage 
buildings or behind landscape screening or buildings so as to minimize visibility 
from the roadway unless prior written approval is secured from the Plan 
Commission. 
 
b. Parking Location: 
 
No parking shall be allowed within the parking setbacks set forth in Division 15-
5.0200 of the Unified Development Ordinance unless otherwise approved in 
writing by the Plan Commission, except parking setbacks from interior lot lines of 
a property zoned PDD No. 38 when abutting another property owned by the 
Milwaukee County Parks Department. 
 
Utilization of parking on any adjacent sites is prohibited and shall not be counted 
towards parking requirements. 
 
c. Parking Ratio: 
 
Unless otherwise approved by the Plan Commission, areas for current and future 
parking needs shall be provided as follows: 
 

i. Off-street parking space and on-site queuing requirements shall comply 
with Section 15-5.0203 and Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

ii. Each use shall have parking capacity adequate to serve the reasonable 
expected parking needs for the Site; and  



 8 

iii. No continuing or extended use shall be made of a Site or any building 
constructed thereon which requires, or is reasonably expected to require, 
parking in excess of the capacity of the parking facilities available on said 
Site. 

 
3. Screening: 

 
a. Storage: 
 
Waste and recycling containers shall be screened from view from the streets and 
adjacent sites by completely opaque screens unless otherwise approved by the 
Plan Commission.  No other articles, goods, materials, finished or semi-finished 
products, incinerators, storage tanks, or other items shall be kept outdoors or 
exposed to public view, or to view from adjacent sites. 
 

4. Landscaping: 
 
a. Landscape Requirements: 
 
The Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force development shall provide 
landscape plantings as depicted upon the Landscape Plan City file-stamped 
_____, 2015 and annexed hereto as Exhibit C. 
 
Plantings shall be provided with a minimum three (3) year planting guaranty.  
 
Future Uses shall provide Landscaping in compliance with all requirements set 
forth per Division 15-5.0300 of the Unified Development Ordinance.  
 

5. Architecture: 
 
a. Architecture: 
 
Customary and routine maintenance of the existing structures as depicted on 
Exhibit I is herein anticipated and hereby approved.  New buildings and 
structures, building additions, and significant and/or substantial building 
alterations shall be subject to site plan review and approval under the terms of 
§15-7.0100 of this Ordinance. 
 
The visitors center shall be completed, and in substantial compliance, per Exhibit 
J. 
 
Future uses and structures shall provide architectural elements consistent with the 
structures herein approved so as to provide a single cohesive development.  
 

6. Hours of Operation: 
 



 9 

a. Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force: 
 
Hours of operation for the Milwaukee County Farm/Hunger Task Force shall 
generally be limited to 7:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
 
b. Truck Shipments and Deliveries and Refuse Collection: 
 
Truck shipments and deliveries and refuse collection shall be prohibited between 
the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.  
 
Trucks shall be prohibited from idling while loading and unloading. 
 

7. Lighting: 
 
a. Unless otherwise approved by the Plan Commission, all site lighting shall 

be in compliance with the regulations set forth in Division 15-5.0400 of 
the Unified Development Ordinance.  

 
8. Noise: 

 
a. All noise levels must be in compliance with Sections 15-3.0908 and 15-

3.1107 of this Ordinance and §183-38 through §183-46 of the City of 
Franklin Municipal Code. 
 

F. Conditions of Approval. 
 
The development of Planned Development District No. 38 upon the adoption of Section 
15-3.0443 shall occur and be in compliance with Exhibit A, Site Figure (including the 
conditions of approval below). 
 

1. The applicants shall revise the Project Narrative and/or Site Figure to clearly 
indicate which buildings and uses are currently provided, and are envisioned to be 
provided, public sewer and water services, and which systems or portions of such 
systems should be placed within appropriate easements, for Planning and 
Engineering Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit.  Any such easements shall be prepared by the applicants, 
reviewed by staff, and approved by the Common Council, prior to issuance of any 
Occupancy Permit. 

2. The applicants shall obtain verification from the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation that the appropriate right-of-way and access restrictions are 
incorporated onto the Site Figure, for staff review and approval prior to issuance 
of any Occupancy Permit. 

3. The applicants shall revise the Site Figure to also include additional sidewalks 
connecting any adjacent parking lot(s) to the barn/hatchery/office space building, 
for Planning Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any 



 10 

Occupancy Permit.  Any such sidewalks shall be constructed within one year of 
City approval of this Planned Development District. 

4. Truck shipments and deliveries, and refuse collection, shall be prohibited between 
the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

5. The applicants shall revise the Site Figure or prepare a Parking Plan to depict all 
driveways, parking lots, and loading/unloading areas, for Planning Department 
staff review and approval prior to issuance of any Building Permit. 

6. The applicants shall revise the Site Figure and/or prepare a Parking Plan to depict 
an emergency access drive through the farm complex for the review and approval 
of the Fire Department prior to issuance of any Building Permit.  The applicants 
shall also construct the emergency access drive, to the Fire Department’s 
standards, prior to issuance of any Occupancy Permit unless otherwise determined 
by the Fire Department. 

7. The applicants shall revise the Site Figure and/or prepare a Parking Plan to depict 
as paved all parking lot(s), driveway(s), access drive(s), loading/unloading 
area(s), etc. which would likely be used by the general public, for Planning 
Department staff review and approval prior to issuance of any Building Permit.  
Any such parking related facilities shall be constructed to City standards within 
one year of City approval of the Planned Development District. 

8. The applicants shall submit a Landscape Plan for those parking lot(s) generally 
accessible to the public, for Planning Department staff review and approval prior 
to issuance of any Building Permit. 

9. The applicants shall prepare a Lighting Plan which depicts pedestrian scale 
bollard lighting at all parking lot(s) and along all sidewalks which are envisioned 
to be utilized by the general public, for Planning Department staff review and 
approval prior to issuance of any Building Permit. 

10. The applicants shall obtain verification that a Stormwater Management Plan is not 
required, or obtain final approval of a Stormwater Management Plan, from the 
Engineering Department prior to issuance of any Building Permit. 

11. The applicants shall submit a detailed Natural Resource Protection Plan, which 
meets the requirements set forth in Divisions 15-4.0100 and 15-7.0200 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, for review and approval by Planning 
Department staff prior to issuance of any Occupancy Permit. 

12. To be determined. 
 
SECTION 3: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  Should any term or 

provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
SECTION 4: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are 

hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

publication. 
 



 11 

 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
______ day of __________________, 2015, by Alderman ___________________________. 
 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
______ day of _______________________, 2015. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______ 
 






































































	2015-0903 Plan Commission Packet
	2015-0903 Plan Commission Agenda (redraft)
	FRANKLIN CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

	2015-0806 Minutes_Draft_Revised Plan Commission
	2015-0820 Minutes_Draft Plan Commission
	Item C.1._PDD NEW_CMPamd Hunger Task Force
	PC Staff Rept_2015-0903_Mil Co Farm Hunger Task Force PDD
	PC RES_Adopt CMPamd_Milwaukee Co  Parks Hunger Task Force
	ORD_draft_CMPamd_Milwaukee Co  Parks Hunger Task Force
	ORD_draft_PPD NEW_Milw  Co  Farm Hunger Task Force
	Maps_Hunger Task Force
	Submittal Materials_dated 2015-0824
	Visitor Center Construction Documents
	13015 HTF - A010
	13015 HTF - A100
	13015 HTF - A200
	13015 HTF - A201
	13015 HTF - A400
	13015 HTF - A500
	13015 HTF - A501
	13015 HTF - A600
	13015 HTF - A601
	13015 HTF - A800
	13015 HTF - A801
	13015 HTF - A810
	13015 HTF - G000


	Item D.1._Horizon Resource Group CMP A
	2015-0903 PC Report - Horizon Group CMP A
	Map cc 9150 80th
	Map az 9150 80th
	2015-0903 RES - Horizon Resource Group LLC CMP Amend PC adopt recommend (8-26-15)
	2015-0903 ORD - Horizon Resource Group LLC CMP Amend (8-11-15)
	CMP MAP - 9150 80th St.
	9150 S. 80th St. CMP Amend. Map (revised 8-24-15)
	Conservation Esmt Exhibit revised (8-20-15)
	Conservation Easement legal description revised (8-20-15)





